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ESSEX PLACE-NAMES PROJECT.

The Essex Place-names Project is a County-wide survey to record place- and field-names from historical documents such as Tithe maps and apportionments, estate maps, sale 

and auction catalogues, conveyances, terriers, deeds, rolls, inquisitions and surveys.

The second element of the Project is to investigate on-the-ground visible remains which correspond to the Place-names for actual or potential archaeological, agricultural and industrial 

sites, and to record natural (topographical) and man-made features which may relate to the Place-name. This involves field-survey in rural and outside investigation in built-up areas.

It is anticipated that the Project will lead to identification of archaeological sites and lost historic buildings;  it will enable analysis of indicators of early settlement, land  holding, agricultural and industrial practices of the County.  It will refine the more precise meaning of descriptive words and elements used by earlier settlers as they gave names appropriate to the topography of the landscape of their time.

For convenience the surveys are based on the parish, recognising that present civil parish boundaries are not necessarily identical to former ecclesiastical boundaries.  Local Recorders 

are supplied with templates of Record Forms to ensure consistency of recording across the County, and forward completed forms to a Central Coordinator for  transfer to a county 

computer database which is available to researchers on the internet at www.essex.ac.uk/history/esah/essexplacenames, and updated periodically. 

This publication presents part of the information recorded from the Tithe or Estate Award and Map, and from other documents for this parish. The full record is contained on the master 

database at Essex County Council (Historic Environment Section) and on the (above) website. Parish books are available to be downloaded from the website link ‘Books’ on the Home page. Please notify errors to the Project Coordinator at the Essex Record Office. 

      THE TITHE  MAP AND APPORTIONMENT.
Since medieval times a tenth of the produce of land and stock had been paid by landholders to the church.  At the Dissolution of the  Monasteries, the property of many religious houses, 

including the right to collect tithes, passed into lay hands.  The Tithe Commutation Act which received Royal assent on 13th August 1836 abolished a rent payable in kind and 

substituted rent-charges apportioned on each plot or parcel. The tithe-rent  payable was assessed on the average value of  wheat, barley and oats and was to fluctuate with price movements.

The commutation could be by voluntary agreement between the local owners and payers or, if agreement failed, could be compulsorily imposed by commissioners.  A Valuer was to be 

appointed to apportion the rent of each parcel of land and tenants could deduct that rent-charge from their rent paid to the landlord.  The task fell to the Tithe Commissioners to produce a 

map and an Apportionment (Award).  A large-scale survey was produced for over 70% of England and Wales in the following 9 years, and about another 8% up to 1855. Most of the 

parishes in Essex were surveyed.  The map scales vary. The Award records ownership, tenancy and land-use, field by field and parcel by parcel (often quoting the field name) with the 

ground area and rent-charge.  

Land that was tithe-free tends to be less accurately mapped and contains few if any of the details recorded for those parcels subject to tithe.  Rights of way and  roads also tend to be 

neglected. Boundaries of the tithe areas are shown as are some natural features such as streams, ponds, gardens, greens and commons. Buildings are often shown coloured red if dwellings 

or grey if  not.  Because the Award may have been agreed only some time after the map was finished, discrepancies occur between the two.  Enclosure Awards, when extant, usually date to the 18th and early 19th centuries.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 J.Kemble.[image: image7.jpg]Aeres
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The Parish of Arkesden (in Uttlesford Hundred).

There is no Tithe Award for Arkesden since Enclosure had taken place earlier in the 19th century.  The place- and field-names in the following table are documented from the Map (ERO: D/DQy 2), dated 1733, of Woodhall Manor, Peverells and Chadwell Lodge Farms, Rokels, Wigpetts, Coggeshall and Minchins of Richard Cheeke esq, Treasurer of Christs Hospitall, by Sam. Warner of Kirby Street, Hatton Garden. London, from the Enclosure Map (ERO: D/DYo 2) dated 1821, of the Map (ERO: D/DYo 1) dated a.1819, from Chapman & André’s map surveyed in 1774 and published in 1777, and from the 6” Ordnance Survey map c.1880.
In Domesday Book, 1086, Archesdana was held by Eudo the Steward in lordship which Aelfric Wand had held as a manor for 2 hides less 15 acres in 1066. Roger de Auberville held Archesdana which Leofwin had held for one hide. Roger also held in the same vill one hide which Wulfa had held freely before 1066. Picot held Archesdana(m) from Robert Gernon which Grimkel had held as a manor for one hide less 8 acres. This last became the manor of Mynchens alias Becketts (VCH, 1903; Morris, 1983).  Watts (2004) translates this from Old English denu, ‘Arcel’s valley’, or Old Norse ‘Arnkell’s’. The village lies in the valley of Wicken Water, a tributary of River Granta or Cam (Kemble, 2007).  Einesuurda(m) was held in 1086 by Richard from William de Warenne which Wulfmer had held as a manor for 2½ hides.  This became Chardwell alias Ainsworth, ‘Ægen’s enclosure’ (VCH, 1903). The ‘cold stream’ was presumably Wicken Water or one of its tributaries.  Boso, a free man, held Wigghepet before 1066 as a manor for 2½ hides with a mill.  A free man held Wicgepet before 1066 as a manor for 3 hides, but William de Warenne annexed both. (‘Wicga’s pit or hollow’).  This was Rokels, 1471, Court Roll, Rokells Farm (formerly (detached) in Arkesden but now in Elmdon) (Hesse, 2011). 
There were these manors:  1. Woodhall. Before 1165 this was granted to Henry son of Gerald the Chamberlain.  In 1357 Sir Richard and Sir Robert de Bayeux and others granted to Richard de Essex, clothier of London, 12 marks rent out of Arkesden. Sir William de Burton (died 1375) held of the Duke of Lancaster Wood-hall, the first documention of the manor by this name. William Cutts in 1607 inherited Wood-hall, Peverells, Minchins and Rickling with le Cosshe (in Elmdon) and Chardwell, and part of Wiggpitts and Coxshall.  2. Of Mynchins alias Parsonage alias Beckets, the Prioress of Campess (Suffolk) held half a knight’s fee under Richard de Plaiz (died 1327).  In 1364 the nunnery released it to the Abbot of Walden.  After the Dissolution, in 1538 Henry VIII granted it to Sir Thomas Audley (Morant, 1768).  
The church, according to Pevsner (2007) and Morant (1768) dedicated to St Mary, but to the Ordnance Survey Map c.1880 to St Margaret, has a Norman round tower below the west tower which was built in 1855. The Old Maltings are timber-framed 17th century. The Axe and Compasses is thatched, c. 1700.  Sextons has remains of a 16th/17th century wall painting.  Wood Hall is dated 1652 according to an interior carving (Pevsner, 2007).  The Roman road from Brent Pelham to Great Chesterford and the River Stort form the western parish boundary.
 In Domesday Book the Hundred name was variously Udelsfort, Wdelesfort, Udelesforda, Odelesforda, (‘Udel’s ford’ or ‘ford by the outlying pastures’), formerly divided into East and West (Fowler, 1922; Reaney, 1935).  Christie (1926) places the moot at Wendens Ambo at Mutlow Hill where there was a mound by the ford through a tributary of the River Cam (Kemble, 2012).  Uttlesford Hundred had Clavering Hundred taken out of it and probably Freshwell also (VCH, 1903).

Field- and place-names from other documents are shown against the Map names.
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The  Place-names of Arkesden.

	Rec Off
	Ref. No.
	Date   Map
	 Place-name
	 Alias
	Grd Rf
	x
	y
	Owner
	Owner
	Other information

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 2
	1733
	Bramble Bush field
	
	TL
	490
	355
	Cheeke, Richard, esq
	(Treasurer of Christs Hospitall)
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 2
	1733
	Brasiers
	cp. Brasyers, 1539,Ct
	TL
	484
	335
	Cheeke, Richard, esq
	            - do -
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 2
	1733
	Church field
	
	TL
	482
	350
	Cheeke, Richard, esq
	- do -
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 2
	1733
	Cote field
	
	TL
	482
	339
	Cheeke, Richard, esq
	- do -
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 2
	1733
	Cranes field
	
	TL
	483
	344
	Cheeke, Richard, esq
	- do -
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 2
	1733
	Dawney Hook  
	
	TL
	483
	335
	Cheeke, Richard, esq
	- do -
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 2
	1733
	Dovehouse Close
	
	TL
	481
	340
	Cheeke, Richard, esq
	- do -
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 2
	1733
	Further Chardwell
	
	TL
	482
	347
	Cheeke, Richard, esq
	- do -
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 2
	1733
	Great Darvel
	
	TL
	477
	344
	Cheeke, Richard, esq
	- do -
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 2
	1733
	Horsepasture Grove
	
	TL
	475
	336
	Cheeke, Richard, esq
	- do -
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 2
	1733
	Lower Horse Pasture
	
	TL
	482
	348
	Cheeke, Richard, esq
	- do -
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 2
	1733
	Mad Ley
	
	TL
	486
	337
	Cheeke, Richard, esq
	- do -
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 2
	1733
	Minchins field
	cp. Menchens, 1387,Walden
	TL
	486
	357
	Cheeke, Richard, esq
	- do -
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 2
	1733
	Night's Mead
	
	TL
	485
	341
	Cheeke, Richard, esq
	- do -
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 2
	1733
	Oders field
	
	TL
	487
	355
	Cheeke, Richard, esq
	- do -
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 2
	1733
	Plash Wood field
	cf. le Plas, Plasfeld, 1387,Walden
	TL
	487
	349
	Cheeke, Richard, esq
	- do -
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 2
	1733
	Poor Street field
	
	TL
	492
	334
	Cheeke, Richard, esq
	- do -
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 2
	1733
	Pump Close
	
	TL
	478
	337
	Cheeke, Richard, esq
	- do -
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 2
	1733
	Rogers Chardwell
	cp. Chaldewell(e)(feld), 1361-97,Ct
	TL
	473
	344
	Cheeke, Richard, esq
	- do -
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 2
	1733
	Rush Darvel
	
	TL
	482
	342
	Cheeke, Richard, esq
	- do -
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 2
	1733
	Stockin
	cp. Stockyng, 1387,Walden
	TL
	474
	340
	Cheeke, Richard, esq
	- do -
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 2
	1733
	The Lawn
	
	TL
	476
	337
	Cheeke, Richard, esq
	- do -
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 2
	1733
	Town field
	
	TL
	490
	346
	Cheeke, Richard, esq
	- do -
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 2
	1733
	Upper Horse Pasture
	
	TL
	473
	348
	Cheeke, Richard, esq
	- do -
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 2
	1733
	Wright's Mead
	
	TL
	472
	345
	Cheeke, Richard, esq
	- do -
	


	ERO
	D/DYo 2
	1821
	Chaters field
	
	TL
	482
	367
	
	
	

	ERO
	D/DYo 2
	1821
	Cockbush
	
	TL
	486
	366
	
	
	

	ERO
	D/DYo 2
	1821
	Perry field
	
	TL
	473
	358
	
	
	


	ERO
	D/DYo 1
	 a.1819
	Arkesden Street Shott
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	ERO
	D/DYo 1
	a.1819
	Bedloes
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	ERO
	D/DYo 1
	a.1819
	Bramble Bush field
	
	TL
	490
	335
	
	
	

	ERO
	D/DYo 1
	a.1819
	Broad field
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	ERO
	D/DYo 1
	a.1819
	Bullbrook field
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	ERO
	D/DYo 1
	a.1819
	Chaffers field
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	ERO
	D/DYo 1
	a.1819
	Chardwell Lodge
	cp. Einesuurdam, 1086,DB
	TL
	470
	345
	
	
	Chardwell alias Ainsworth, VCH i, 476

	ERO
	D/DYo 1
	a.1819
	Church field
	
	TL
	382
	350
	
	
	

	ERO
	D/DYo 1
	a.1819
	Cock Bush Field
	
	TL
	486
	366
	
	
	

	ERO
	D/DYo 1
	a.1819
	Coopers End
	
	TL
	465
	360
	
	
	Edmund le Cupere, 1293, AD ii

	ERO
	D/DYo 1
	a.1819
	Cote field
	
	TL
	482
	339
	
	
	

	ERO
	D/DYo 1
	a.1819
	Dawney Hooks
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	ERO
	D/DYo 1
	a.1819
	Dovehouse field
	
	TL
	483
	344
	
	
	

	ERO
	D/DYo 1
	a.1819
	Furneaux Pelham Church
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	ERO
	D/DYo 1
	a.1819
	Further Chardwell
	cp. Chaldewell(e)(feld), 1361-97,Ct
	TL
	482
	347
	
	
	

	ERO
	D/DYo 1
	a.1819
	Great Darvel
	
	TL
	477
	344
	
	
	

	ERO
	D/DYo 1
	a.1819
	Hampitt Shot
	Hampits, 1880,OS
	TL
	477
	346
	
	
	

	ERO
	D/DYo 1
	a.1819
	Hungerdown field
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	ERO
	D/DYo 1
	a.1819
	Kissocks
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	ERO
	D/DYo 1
	a.1819
	Lower or Nether field
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	ERO
	D/DYo 1
	a.1819
	Madley
	
	TL
	486
	337
	
	
	

	ERO
	D/DYo 1
	a.1819
	Minchins field
	cp. Menchens, 1387,Walden
	TL
	486
	357
	
	
	belonged to Campsey Nunnery, Morant ii,591

	ERO
	D/DYo 1
	a.1819
	Nomans Land Common
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	ERO
	D/DYo 1
	a.1819
	Oders End Shott
	
	TL
	487
	355
	
	
	

	ERO
	D/DYo 1
	a.1819
	Pasture Braziers
	cp. Brasyers, 1539,Ct
	
	
	
	
	
	Robert Brasyere,1384, Ct

	ERO
	D/DYo 1
	a.1819
	Perry field
	
	TL
	473
	358
	
	
	

	ERO
	D/DYo 1
	a.1819
	Plash Wood field
	cf. le Plas, Plasfeld, 1387,Walden
	TL
	486
	349
	
	
	Thomas de Plesseto, 1242,Fine

	ERO
	D/DYo 1
	a.1819
	Poor Street field
	
	TL
	492
	334
	
	
	

	ERO
	D/DYo 1
	a.1819
	Pump Close
	
	TL
	478
	337
	
	
	

	ERO
	D/DYo 1
	a.1819
	Rogers Chardwell
	cp. Cheldewell(emede), 1361,Ct
	TL
	473
	344
	
	
	

	ERO
	D/DYo 1
	a.1819
	Rush Darvel
	
	TL
	482
	342
	
	
	

	ERO
	D/DYo 1
	a.1819
	S Mickels field
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	ERO
	D/DYo 1
	a.1819
	Several Common field
	Severalls, 1805,OS
	TL
	490
	342
	
	
	

	ERO
	D/DYo 1
	a.1819
	Stocking alias Thirteen Acres
	cp.Stockyng,1387,Walden; Stocking Grove,1880,OS
	TL
	471
	341
	
	
	

	ERO
	D/DYo 1
	a.1819
	The Fore Lawn
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	ERO
	D/DYo 1
	a.1819
	Thick Mead
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	ERO
	D/DYo 1
	a.1819
	Town field
	
	TL
	490
	346
	
	
	

	ERO
	D/DYo 1
	a.1819
	Upper Sexwells
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	ERO
	D/DYo 1
	a.1819
	Woodhall
	
	TL
	478
	338
	
	
	

	ERO
	D/DYo 1
	a.1819
	Wrights Mead
	
	TL
	472
	345
	
	
	


	Chapman &  André
	
	1777
	Beckets
	Mynchon, 1538,LP
	TL
	475
	355
	
	
	

	Chapman & André
	
	1777
	Hobs-hary
	cf. Hobbesday,1475,ECP; Hobs Aerie,1880,OS
	TL
	484
	353
	
	
	ME pers name Hobb(e). Daye = dairymaid

	Chapman & André
	
	1777
	Clodmore Hill
	
	TL
	469
	353
	
	
	

	Chapman & André
	
	1777
	Wood Hall
	Wodehall, 1370,Cl
	TL
	478
	337
	Fuller, Thos, esq. 1777,C
	
	moated.


	Ord Srvy 6"
	
	c.1880
	Beard's Lane
	
	TL
	460
	353
	
	
	[Roman road]

	Ord Srvy 6"
	
	c.1880
	Bounds Bridge
	Bundesbrege, 13th cent. AD ii
	TL
	485
	370
	
	
	

	Ord Srvy 6"
	
	c.1880
	Chardwell  
	Einesuurdam,1086,DB; Cheldewell, 1361-97,Ct
	TL
	470
	345
	
	
	cp.Chardwell alias Ainsworth, VCH i, 476.

	Ord Srvy 6"
	
	c.1880
	Compass P.H.
	
	TL
	484
	344
	
	
	

	Ord Srvy 6"
	
	c.1880
	Daw's Farm
	
	TL
	484
	342
	
	
	Richard Dawe, 1325,Ass

	Ord Srvy 6"
	
	c.1880
	Frog's Hall
	
	TL
	468
	348
	
	
	

	Ord Srvy 6"
	
	c.1880
	Foster's Farm
	
	TL
	466
	350
	
	
	Edmund ffor(e)ster, 1397,Ct

	Ord Srvy 6"
	
	c.1880
	Great Becketts
	Menchens, 1387,Walden; Beckcoats, 1768,M
	TL
	475
	355
	
	
	belonged to Campsey Nunnery, Morant ii,591

	Ord Srvy 6"
	
	c.1880
	Horsepasture Grove
	cf. Horsecroft, 1387,Walden
	TL
	475
	336
	
	
	

	Ord Srvy 6"
	
	c.1880
	Little Becketts
	Mynchions, 1563,FF
	TL
	473
	356
	
	
	belonged to Campsey Nunnery, Morant ii,591

	Ord Srvy 6"
	
	c.1880
	Longlane Bridge
	Langelond, -land, 1387,Walden
	TL
	487
	367
	
	
	

	Ord Srvy 6"
	
	c.1880
	Morley Green / Wood
	Morleye, 1361,Ct
	TL
	464
	354
	
	
	

	Ord Srvy 6"
	
	c.1880
	Newland End
	cf. le Newlond(strett), 1384-98, Ct
	TL
	478
	356
	
	
	

	Ord Srvy 6"
	
	c.1880
	Parsonage Farm
	
	TL
	482
	345
	
	
	

	Ord Srvy 6"
	
	c.1880
	St Margaret's Church
	
	TL
	483
	345
	
	
	

	Ord Srvy 6"
	
	c.1880
	Sexton's Farm
	
	TL
	484
	344
	
	
	Robert Sexsteyn, 1384,Ct

	Ord Srvy 6"
	
	c.1880
	Steven's Lane
	
	TL
	470
	348
	
	
	

	Ord Srvy 6"
	
	c.1880
	Rockell's Farm
	Wigghepet,Wicgepet,1086,DB; Rokels,1471,Ct
	TL
	467
	365
	
	
	Humphrey de Rochella, 1205,FF - 1376,AD vi

	Ord Srvy 6"
	
	c.1880
	Westmead Grove
	
	TL
	474
	344
	
	
	

	Ord Srvy 6"
	
	c.1880
	Wicken Water
	
	TL
	475
	350
	
	
	tributary of R. Granta


For abbreviations see Reaney, P., Place-names of Essex, Cambridge, 1935; and Kemble, J., Essex Place-names, Places, Streets & People, Historical Publications, 2007, p 153.
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  Arkesden parish in the County of Essex.
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